



INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

RATES AND REGULATIONS

PART III: ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

Adopted by the Board of Directors

Effective

Rate and Regulation Resolution BR19-

Timothy L. White, President

Date

Intermountain Rural Electric Association Board of Directors

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

SECTION 1. RATES

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE (A)

AVAILABILITY

Available to residential Consumers of the Association for residential uses subject to its established Regulations. The capacity of individual motors served under this schedule shall not exceed 10 hp.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to existing and new residential Consumers in all areas of the Association. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$10.00 12.50
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.123 100.12052

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

RESIDENTIAL INCORPORATED CITY OR TOWN SERVICE (CS)

AVAILABILITY

Available to residential Consumers of the Association located in applicable incorporated cities or towns for all residential uses subject to its established Regulations. The capacity of individual motors served under this schedule shall not exceed 10 hp.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to existing and new residential Consumers located in incorporated cities or towns having a franchise agreement with the Association. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$10.00 12.50
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.113 170.11004

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

RESIDENTIAL - DEMAND METERED (C)

AVAILABILITY

Available to residential Consumers of the Association for residential uses subject to its established Regulations. The capacity of individual motors served under this schedule shall not exceed 10 hp.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to existing residential Consumers receiving service under this rate schedule and newly constructed residential Consumers. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$10.00
Demand charge, per kW, per month	\$14.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.06591

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of sixty (60) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

~~POWER FACTOR~~

~~The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

RESIDENTIAL INCORPORATED CITY OR TOWN SERVICE - DEMAND METERED (CSD)

AVAILABILITY

Available to residential Consumers of the Association located in applicable incorporated cities or towns for all residential uses subject to its established Regulations. The capacity of individual motors served under this schedule shall not exceed 10 hp.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to existing and new residential Consumers located in incorporated cities or towns having a franchise agreement with the Association. All ~~applicable~~eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$10.00
Demand charge, per kW, per month	\$10.50
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.06470

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of sixty (60) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

~~POWER FACTOR~~

~~The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

SMALL GENERAL SERVICE - 1 PHASE (SG1)

AVAILABILITY

Available to single-phase non-residential Consumers subject to the established regulations of the Association covering this type of service. Consumers having their homes on the same premises with their business establishments may include service for both on the same meter, in which case, all service will be billed under this schedule.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Consumers in all areas of the Association who require 50 kVA or less of transformer capacity. All eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage. No motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp.

RATE

<u>Basic Service charge, per month</u>	<u>\$21.00</u>
<u>Demand charge, per kW, per month</u>	<u>\$8.54</u>
<u>All kWh, per kWh</u>	<u>\$0.06363</u>

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations.

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

SMALL GENERAL SERVICE 3 PHASE (SG3)

AVAILABILITY

Available to three-phase non-residential Consumers subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service. Consumers having their homes on the same premises with their business establishments may include service for both on the same meter, in which case, all service will be billed under this schedule.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential and residential Consumers in all areas of the Association who require 50 kVA or less of transformer capacity. All eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.

RATE

<u>Basic Service charge, per month</u>	<u>\$30.00</u>
<u>Demand charge, per kW, per month</u>	<u>\$11.65</u>
<u>All kWh, per kWh</u>	<u>\$0.06363</u>

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations.

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

COMMERCIAL SERVICE (E1) - FROZEN

AVAILABILITY (Not available to new accounts as of February 1, 2019)

Available to single-phase non-residential Consumers who have taken service under this rate continuously since January 31, 2019, or an earlier date. This rate is subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service. Consumers having their homes on the same premises with their business establishments may include service for both on the same meter, in which case, all service will be billed under this schedule.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential Consumers in all areas of the Association who require 50 kVA or less of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$21.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.11309

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

COMMERCIAL SERVICE (E3) - FROZEN

AVAILABILITY (Not available to new accounts as of February 1, 2019)

Available to three-phase non-residential and residential Consumers who have taken service under this rate continuously since January 31, 2019, or an earlier date. This rate is subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service. Consumers having their homes on the same premises with their business establishments may include service for both on the same meter, in which case, all service will be billed under this schedule.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential and residential Consumers in all areas of the Association who require 50 kVA or less of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable~~eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$30.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.11309

POWER FACTOR

~~This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations. The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety-five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

COMMERCIAL SERVICE - DEMAND METERED (B)

AVAILABILITY

Available to single-phase or three-phase non-residential Consumers and three-phase residential Consumers subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service. Consumers having their homes on the same premises with their business establishments may include service for both on the same meter, in which case, all service will be billed under this schedule.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to Consumers in all areas of the Association who require 50 kVA or less of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Single-phase and three-phase where available, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltages. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$30.00
Demand charge, per kW, per month	\$14.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.06363

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

~~This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations. The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times~~

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

~~ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately ten (10) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

IRRIGATION SERVICE (I)

AVAILABILITY

Available to farm Consumers subject to the Association's established Regulations covering this type of service.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable only to agricultural irrigation service. All ~~applicable~~eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$21.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.11374

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

INTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE (IS)

AVAILABILITY

Available to: 1) Agricultural (nonresidential) and 2) pump water storage Consumers of the Association subject to the Association's established Regulations. The combined capacity of individual loads shall be 75 kVA or 75 hp and larger, or combination thereof, of connected load which will consume sufficient energy to warrant such service.

APPLICABILITY

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage. This rate shall be subject to the Consumer's ability to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Association that its service can be interrupted by showing the ability to switch to an alternate power source or the ability to sustain interruption of service without undue health, safety, or economic burden.

PENALTY

Service under this schedule is subject to interruption upon a two-(2) hour notice from the Association. A penalty of \$10.00 per kVA and/or horsepower of connected load shall be charged for failure to comply with a notice to interrupt. This penalty shall be charged for each occurrence and may be reduced or waived, depending upon the cost to the Association resulting from the failure to comply with a notice to interrupt. Said notice shall be effective upon notification by telephone to the Consumer at the number to be supplied by the Consumer for such purpose.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Sixty (60) cycle, at available secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$23.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.10374

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.
2. The Consumer may connect lighting to power circuits from the power meter; however, any equipment required for such lighting shall be furnished by the Consumer.
3. All wiring, pole lines, and other electrical equipment beyond the metering point, ~~exclusive of the service transformers and protective equipment,~~ are considered the distribution system of the Consumer and shall be furnished and maintained by the Consumer unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Association as to specific equipment.
4. All service under this rate is subject to the Regulations of the Association.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

LARGE POWER SERVICE - (LPS)

AVAILABILITY

Available to three-phase non-residential Consumers subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential Consumers in all areas of the Association who require three-phase service greater than 50 kVA of transformer capacity. All eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at standard secondary voltage.

RATE

<u>Basic Service charge, per month</u>	<u>\$86.60</u>
<u>Demand charge, per kW, per month</u>	<u>\$13.25</u>
<u>All kWh, per kWh</u>	<u>\$0.06000</u>

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations.

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

-
-
2. The Consumer may connect lighting to power circuits from the power meter; however, any equipment required for such lighting, shall be furnished by the Consumer.
 3. All wiring, pole lines, and other electrical equipment beyond the metering point are considered the distribution system of the Consumer and shall be furnished and maintained by the Consumer unless otherwise agreed by the Association as to specific equipment.
 4. All service under this rate is subject to the Regulations of the Association.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

LARGE POWER SERVICE (FP) - FROZEN

AVAILABILITY (Not available to new accounts as of February 1, 2019)

Available to three-phase non-residential and residential Consumers who have taken service under this rate continuously since January 31, 2019, or an earlier date. This rate is subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential and residential Consumers in all areas of the Association who require three-phase service greater than 50 kVA of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at standard secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$120.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.12355

POWER FACTOR

~~This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations. The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.
2. The Consumer may connect lighting to power circuits from the power meter; however, any equipment required for such lighting, shall be furnished by the Consumer.
3. All wiring, pole lines, and other electrical equipment beyond the metering point, ~~exclusive of the service transformers and protective equipment,~~ are considered the distribution system of the Consumer and shall be furnished and maintained by the Consumer unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Association as to specific equipment.
4. All service under this rate is subject to the Regulations of the Association.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

LARGE POWER SERVICE - DEMAND METERED (P)

AVAILABILITY

Available to three-phase non-residential and residential Consumers subject to the established Regulations of the Association covering this type of service.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential and residential Consumers in all areas of the Association who require three-phase service greater than 50 kVA of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at standard secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$120.00
Demand charge, per kW, per month	\$14.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.06449

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

~~This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations. The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.
2. The Consumer may connect lighting to power circuits from the power meter; however, any equipment required for such lighting, shall be furnished by the Consumer.
3. All wiring, pole lines, and other electrical equipment beyond the metering point, ~~exclusive of the service transformers and protective equipment,~~ are considered the distribution system of the Consumer and shall be furnished and maintained by the Consumer unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Association as to specific equipment.
4. All service under this rate is subject to the Regulations of the Association.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

INDUSTRIAL SERVICE - DEMAND METERED (S)

AVAILABILITY

Available to non-residential Consumers of the Association located on or near the Association's three-phase lines.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to non-residential Consumers who require three-phase service equal to or greater than 500 kVA of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable-eligible~~ Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at standard secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$120.00
Demand charge, per kW, per month	\$17.25
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.05344

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

~~This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations. The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.
2. The Consumer may connect lighting to power circuits from the power meter; however, any equipment required for such lighting, shall be furnished by the Consumer.
3. All wiring, pole lines, and other electrical equipment beyond the metering point, ~~exclusive of the service transformers and protective equipment,~~ are considered the distribution system of the Consumer and shall be furnished and maintained by the Consumer unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Association as to specific equipment.
4. All service under this rate is subject to the Regulations of the Association.

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of taxes, franchise fees and any other mandated surcharges. The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

FRANCHISE FEE

Franchise Fee Surcharge Schedule located in OTHER OPTIONS AND FEES.

GOVERNMENTAL MANDATED FACILITY CHANGES

This rate schedule is subject to Part V - Extension Regulations, Governmental Mandated Facility Changes.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

TRANSMISSION WHEELING SERVICE (TWS)

AVAILABILITY

Available throughout the Association's service area where such service is deemed to be feasible by the Association subject to its interconnection requirements.

APPLICABILITY

Wholesale transmission of energy using the Association's Transmission Facilities. This rate schedule is not applicable to service offered by the Association under another rate schedule and is not available for retail service.

Wheeling Agreements between a Consumer and the Association under which the Consumer is receiving services prior to January 31, 2019, shall be exempt from the terms of this rate through the termination date of such agreements.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at the Association's available transmission voltages. This service will be supplied at a single delivery point and measured with one meter.

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

If the facilities in place at the time wheeling service is requested are determined by the Association to be inadequate to meet the wheeling Consumer's Contract Demand, the Association may enlarge its facilities, deny service, or offer limited service.

A contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) will be required if facilities must be enlarged or modified to wheel the generating facility's Contract Demand and must be sufficient to recover some or all of such cost as agreed to by the Association and the applicant.

Once the Association determines that adequate facilities exist to wheel the requested Contract Demand, it will execute the wheeling request in accordance with its Large Generation Interconnection Procedures and its Small Power Production and Cogeneration Facilities procedures as described in the Association's Electric Service Regulations. All facilities altered or constructed by the Association will remain the property of the Association unless the Association otherwise agrees in writing.

An agreement for Transmission Wheeling Service is required. A generation interconnection agreement is required for applicants connecting generating facilities directly to the Association's facilities.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

DEFINITIONS:

- (1) “Transmission Facilities” means the facilities and equipment owned by the Association and operated at or above 115,000 volts, excluding transformers used to step down voltage levels for local distribution.
- (2) “Contract Demand” means the maximum capacity (in kW) specified in the Transmission Wheeling Agreement.
- (3) “Transmission Wheeling Service” means the use of the Association’s Transmission Facilities to transmit generated power from a point of connection with a generating facility to a point of connection with a third party.

WHEELING ACCESS CHARGE

This charge is designed to recover an appropriate, proportional share of the reserved transmission capacity and related transmission system costs that the Association will continue to incur, regardless of the load placed on the transmission facilities. The monthly wheeling access charge will be the kilowatt (kW) Contract Demand multiplied by the following charge:

<u>Contract Demand per kW, per month</u>	<u>\$0.27</u>
--	---------------

WHEELED ENERGY CHARGE

This charge is designed to recover an appropriate, proportional share of the system operational costs that the Association incurs to provide this wheeling service (e.g., O&M expenses, system losses, etc.). The wheeled energy charge is billed monthly based on the amount of energy metered at the interconnection of the generating facility multiplied by the following charge:

<u>All kWh, per kWh</u>	<u>\$0.00016</u>
-------------------------	------------------

OTHER CHARGES THAT MAY APPLY

At its discretion, the Association may pass on other costs that are incurred as a result of providing Transmission Wheeling Service.

LOSS FACTOR

Consumers taking service under this rate shall compensate the Association for losses resulting from such service. Metered quantities shall be adjusted to reflect the following loss factor:

- (1) Transmission loss factor 1.50%

The loss factor may be adjusted by the Association based on its determination of transmission system losses from time to time.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION
ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

PAYMENT

The above rates are net of sales taxes, franchise fees, and any other mandated surcharges.
The due date of the bill shall be approximately twenty (20) days following the billing date.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

Rate Class	Rate Code	Maximum # of Pilot Program Participants
Residential Service	A	500
Residential Incorporated City or Town Service	CS	
Residential Service-Demand Metered	C	
Residential Incorporated City or Town Service – Demand Metered	CSD	
Industrial Service – Demand Metered	S	50
Commercial Service – Demand Metered	B	50
Commercial Service Single-Phase	E1	
Commercial Service Three-Phase	E3	
Large Power Service – Demand Metered	P	50
Large Power Service	FP	
Irrigation Service	I	50
Optional High Load Factor Service – Demand Metered	HLF	50

APPLICABILITY

Applicable on an optional basis to existing and new Consumers in all areas of the Association. All applicable-eligible Consumers selecting this optional service must remain on this rider for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

RATE

For Consumers taking service under Residential (A), Residential Incorporated City or Town Service (CS), Commercial Service (E1/E3), Large Power Service (FP), and Irrigation Service (I), the following administrative charges per metering point per month shall apply, and the following class energy costs per kWh shall apply to the kWhs recorded during the peak and off-peak periods:

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

OPTIONAL HIGH LOAD FACTOR SERVICE - DEMAND METERED (HLF)

AVAILABILITY

Available to existing non-residential Consumers of the Association located on or near the Association's three-phase lines.

APPLICABILITY

Applicable on an optional basis to non-residential Consumers who require three-phase service equal to or greater than 50 kVA of transformer capacity. All ~~applicable~~eligible Consumers selecting this rate must remain on this rate schedule for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

TYPE OF SERVICE

Three-phase, sixty (60) cycle, at standard secondary voltage.

RATE

Basic Service charge, per month	\$265.00
Demand charge, per kW, per month	\$23.00
All kWh, per kWh	\$0.04418

DETERMINATION OF BILLING DEMAND

The billing demand shall be the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes during the month for which the bill is rendered, as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

POWER FACTOR

~~This rate is subject to the power factor surcharge described in Section 8.8 of Part IV: Electric Service Regulations. The Association will measure the Consumer's power factor. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.~~

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE

The basic service charge shall be the minimum charge.

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. Motors having a rated capacity in excess of 10 hp must be three-phase.
2. The Consumer may connect lighting to power circuits from the power meter; however, any equipment required for such lighting, shall be furnished by the Consumer.
3. All wiring, pole lines, and other electrical equipment beyond the metering point, ~~exclusive of the service transformers and protective equipment,~~ are considered the distribution system of the Consumer and shall be furnished and maintained by the Consumer unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Association as to specific equipment.
4. All service under this rate is subject to the Regulations of the Association.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC RATE SCHEDULES

FEES AND CHARGES

Description	Fees/Charges
Membership Fee	\$5.00
Connection Fee	\$5.00
Same Day Connection Fee — Regular Hours	\$20.00
Same Day Connection Fee — After Hours	\$65.00
Discontinuance Fee (optional final read <u>if a premise visit is required</u>)	\$20.00
Disconnect Collection Charge	\$20.00
Disconnect Notice Fee	\$9.25
Reconnection Fee — Regular Hours	\$20.00
Reconnection Fee — After Hours	\$65.00
Insufficient Funds Fee	\$20.00
Special Handling Charge (per each billing)	\$2.00
Meter Test Fee	\$20.00
Meter Diversion Fee (minimum)	\$500.00
Meter Tampering Fee	\$200.00
Small Generation Interconnection Fee (Level 1)	\$100.00
Small Generation Interconnection Fee (Level 2 and 3)	\$500.00
Work Request Design Fee (Residential)	\$1200.00
Work Request Design Fee (Non-Residential)	\$500.00
Work Request Design Fee (Residential Development) \$100 base +	\$5.00/meter
Work Request Design Fee (Non-Residential Development) \$500 base +	\$5.00/meter

Depending on whether the Consumer's meter can be connected or reconnected remotely, the following fees apply:

<u>Premise Visit Required</u>		<u>Remote (No Premise Visit Required)</u>	
<u>Same Day Connection Fee</u>	<u>\$20.00</u>	<u>Same Day Connection Fee</u>	<u>\$10.00</u>
<u>Same Day After Hours Fee</u>	<u>\$65.00</u>	<u>Same Day After Hours Fee</u>	<u>\$20.00</u>
<u>Reconnection Fee</u>	<u>\$20.00</u>	<u>Reconnection Fee</u>	<u>\$10.00</u>
<u>Reconnection Fee After Hours</u>	<u>\$65.00</u>	<u>Reconnection Fee After Hours</u>	<u>\$20.00</u>



INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

RATES AND REGULATIONS

PART IV: ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

Adopted by the Board of Directors

Effective

Rate and Regulation Resolution BR

Timothy L. White, President

Date

Intermountain Rural Electric Association Board of Directors

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

Association shall not be liable, therefore, for any injury to Persons, damage to property, monetary loss or loss of business caused.

- b. For the purposes of making repairs to or changes in the Association's plant, generating equipment, transmission or Distribution System, or other property, the Association may, without incurring any liability, suspend service for such period as may be required. The Association will not inconvenience the Consumer unnecessarily and, whenever possible, will give reasonable notice to the Consumer prior to such suspension of service.
- c. Interruptions in service, however, will not relieve the Consumer from any charges for service actually supplied, nor will accidents to Consumer's equipment or machinery, or failure of Consumer's installations not due to the fault of the Association, relieve the Consumer of payment of minimum charges under the applicable rate or contract.
- d. When electric service facilities become idle to any location for a period greater than twelve (12) months, the Association may give written notice to the owner of record that if the owner desires that the electric service facilities continue to remain in place, the owner must pay the monthly basic service charge or other greater amount established by agreement with the Association. If the owner does not respond or elects to not pay the monthly amount, the Association may remove all or a portion of the electric service facilities at the location. Any reinstallation of the electric service facilities at the location shall be made pursuant to the Association's Extension Regulations.

SECTION 3. INFORMATION FOR ASSOCIATION MEMBERS

3.1 Information for Consumers

- a. The Association shall at any time, on request, give its Consumers such information and assistance as is reasonably possible in order that Consumers may secure safe and efficient service.
- b. The Association shall, on request, explain to its Consumers the method of reading meters.

3.2 Membership in the Association

- a. ~~Each applicant for service may become a member of the Association under conditions prescribed by the~~ Bylaws of the Association establish the terms of membership in the Association.
- b. Membership in the Association is not required as a condition of receiving electric service.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

3.3 ~~Application Requests~~ for Electric Service

- a. ~~Requests for electric service must be made by the Person who will be obligated on the service account or that Person's agent or representative with documentation authorizing such agent or representative to act on the Person's behalf. Commercial or business entities are required to provide an IRS Form W-9 to the Association. All applications for service shall be made on the Association's standard forms. The Association may require any applicant to sign an application for service before service is supplied. Service may be discontinued if the application is not received for a new or transferred account within ten (10) days of the account change. In the event, however, that such application is not signed,~~ the use of electric service shall constitute an agreement under which the user receives electric service and agrees to pay the Association therefore in accordance with applicable Rates and Regulations. The benefits and obligations of the agreement for service may not be assigned without written consent of the Association. A separate agreement will be made for each class of service at each separate location.
- ~~b. Applicants for service shall not be required, in any event, to become a member of the Association before service is supplied.~~
- b. The Association may charge a same day connection fee for new requests for service in the amount of \$20.00 for on-site connection and \$10.00 for remote connection ~~for new applications for service~~. If a same day connection is required by the Consumer after hours a \$65.00 fee applies to on-site connection and \$20.00 for remote connection ~~may apply~~. If the Association charges such a fee, it shall offer a Consumer who is applying requesting ~~for~~ service at a location where the power is already connected the opportunity to avoid the fee by agreeing to the prior meter read recorded in the Association's billing records as the starting point of their service.

3.4 Wiring Inspections

- a. The electrical wiring of each ~~applicant~~ Person requesting service at premises not connected to the Association's Distribution System shall be inspected and approved by state, county, or local authorities before service is rendered by the Association. The Association shall not be responsible, however, for failure of the ~~applicant~~ Person to obtain said inspection.
- b. The Association may, at its option, cause a similar inspection to be made of any existing Consumer's wiring if the Association has reason to believe that dangerous wiring or overloading of the service may exist on the Consumer's side of the Point of Delivery. Service may be discontinued in the event faulty wiring is discovered which creates a hazard to the occupants of the premises or property of the Consumer.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

3.5 Service Connection Fees

- a. A connection fee of \$5.00 will be required for each service connection. A membership fee of \$5.00 shall make the member eligible for one (1) service connection, and upon termination of service, the \$5.00 membership fee will be applied as the service connection fee for the service initially connected for that Consumer.
- b. A service connection is defined as any connection or reconnection of service that results in establishing a new account for billing purposes or the transfer of an existing account.

3.6 Choice of Rates

- a. The schedule of rates shall be on file at all offices of the Association and available ~~to the applicant requesting service~~ on the Association's website. When there are two (2) or more rates applicable to any class of service, the Association will, upon request of the applicantPerson, explain the conditions, character of installation or use of service governing the several rates and assist in the selection of the rates most suitable for the Person's ~~applicant's~~ requirements. The applicantPerson, however, shall be responsible for final selection of said rate, and the Association shall assume no liability therefore.

3.7 Extension of Service, Lines and Facilities

- a. The Association's Regulations regarding extension of service, lines, and facilities is set forth in Part V – Extension Regulations.

3.8 Temporary or Intermittent Service

- a. If service to a Consumer is to be temporary or intermittent, the service connection and any line construction involved will be as set forth in the Association's current Rates and Regulations.

3.9 Easements

- a. A contract for electric service, or receipt of service by a Consumer, will be construed as an agreement granting to the Association an easement for electric lines, wires, conduits and other equipment of the Association necessary to render service to the Consumer. If requested by the Association, the Consumer will execute the Association's standard Right of Way Agreement form of easement granting to the Association, at no expense therefore, satisfactory easements for the suitable location of the Association's wires, conduits, poles, transformers, metering equipment, and other appurtenances on or

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

across lands owned or controlled by the Consumer, and will furnish space and shelter satisfactory to the Association for all necessary apparatus of the Association located on the Consumer's premises. In the event the Consumer shall divide premises by sale in such manner that one part shall be isolated from streets or alleys where the Association's electric lines are accessible, the Consumer shall grant or reserve an easement for electric service over the part having access to electric lines for the benefit of the isolated part.

- b. The Association ~~may will~~ exercise its right of eminent domain and condemn private property as necessary to construct, operate, and maintain the Association's electric system for distribution lines under the terms and conditions in the Association's procedure for condemnation of rights-of-way for distribution lines.

3.10 Delivery Point

- a. The delivery point shall be defined as the point where the Association's electric facilities connect to those of the Consumer.

3.11 Access for the Association's Employees

- a. The Consumer shall provide reasonable access to their premises at all reasonable times for authorized employees of the Association for any proper purpose incidental to the supplying of electric service. The Consumer may be required to pay the reasonable expenses of the Association for meter readings, connects, and disconnects in the event such access is not provided.
- b. No delivery point or meter will be located or maintained beyond the point where reasonable access is provided.
- c. Where the Consumer does not provide access to his/her premises at all reasonable times for employees of the Association for the purpose of meter reading, the Consumer may be required to pay the reasonable expenditures of the Association for installing meters with remote indicators or relocating the existing meter facility.

3.12 Diversion of Electric Energy and Meter Tampering

- a. The existence of electric energy consuming devices installed ahead of the meter or any tampering or interfering with wires, devices, or equipment connected to the Association's Distribution System or the damage to, alteration or obstruction of any meter (including the breaking of meter seals) without prior approval and knowledge of the Association, which will permit or make possible the use of the electric energy without its proper registration on the Association's meter, shall constitute prima facie evidence of diversion

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

writing before members of the Association's Board of Directors, and an order not to terminate service will be issued only if: a) The Consumer has posted a deposit with the Association equal to the amount of the dispute, and b) has previously attempted to resolve the matter with Association personnel by letter, email, telephone or in person.

- c. A residential Consumer may avoid discontinuance of service by complying with one or more of the following conditions:
 - 1. Paying the noticed amount, or,
 - 2. Paying no charges and presenting the Association a current medical certificate signed by a physician, or health practitioner acting under a physician, licensed by the State of Colorado as defined per subsection (i).
 - 3. Any Consumers, with a monthly payment record, finding themselves in a financial hardship may notify the Association and request special arrangements of short duration.
- d. In situations where the Association has been notified in writing that the utility service for an entire dwelling is recorded on a single meter or multiple retail units are on one meter, the Association shall mail or deliver the notice of discontinuance to the Consumer of record, and shall send or deliver a copy of said notice of discontinuance to each individual dwelling unit on the premises. The Association may also post a copy of the notice of discontinuance in one or more of the common areas of the dwelling unit involved.
- e. The Association will require payment only in the form of cash, certified funds, or credit card payments for all returned checks.
- f. Delinquency in payment for service rendered to a previous occupant of the premises to be served and unpaid charges for services or facilities not ordered by the present or prospective Consumer shall not constitute a sufficient cause for refusal of service to a present or prospective Consumer, provided, however, the Association may decline to furnish service at the same premises for the use of a delinquent Consumer by subterfuge in any manner. Subterfuge includes, but is not restricted to, an application for service at a given location in the name of another party by ~~an applicant~~ Person whose account is delinquent and who continues to reside at the premises. Service shall not be discontinued or refused for failure to pay an indebtedness except as incurred for electric service rendered by the Association.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

3.20 Refusal to Serve a Consumer

- a. The Association may refuse to serve a Consumer or prospective Consumer until he/she has complied with the Association's general Rates and Regulations, and such other reasonable regulations as may be approved from time to time by the Association.
- b. The Association shall not serve ~~an applicant~~ Person who is delinquent in payments to the Association for service previously rendered at the same or other locations until such indebtedness is paid in full.
- c. The Association shall not reconnect service that has been disconnected for six (6) months or more until the Consumer or prospective Consumer obtains the necessary approvals from the state and/or county electrical inspector of the Temporary or Permanent meter loop installation.

3.21 Voltage Surveys and Records

- a. The Association shall have, for its use, portable indicating voltmeters and recording voltmeters of the curve drawing type suitable for the service voltages furnished. The Association shall make a sufficient number of voltage surveys to indicate the character of service furnished from each center of distribution and to satisfy compliance with its voltage requirements. The Association shall keep at least one (1) curve drawing voltmeter in continuous service at the main business office.

3.22 Discontinuance of Service at Consumer's Request

- a. A Consumer wishing to discontinue service should give at least three (3) Business Days' notice to the Association to that effect, unless otherwise specified in the applicable rate or contract, in order to allow time for the final meter reading and disconnection of service. If such notice is not received by the Association, the Consumer will be liable for service until final reading of the meter. Notice to discontinue service will not relieve the Consumer from any minimum charge or guaranteed payment under any contract or applicable rate.
- b. Upon notice of discontinuance of service, the Association shall obtain a final meter read, for which it may charge a fee not to exceed \$20.00. If the Association charges such a fee, it shall offer a Consumer who is discontinuing service the opportunity to avoid the fee by (1) receiving a final bill based upon the Association's estimate, which shall be based on the Consumer's historical data on the account and which bill shall be final and binding; or (2) calling in to the Association with the final read done by the Consumer, provided that the Association shall issue a final bill based upon its estimate if a Consumer who selects this choice fails to call in on the agreed upon date.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

6.6 Credit and Payment for Excess Generation

- a. Monthly excess generation: If a Consumer-Generator generates electricity in excess of the Consumer-Generator's monthly consumption, all such excess energy, expressed in kilowatt-hours, shall be carried forward from month to month and credited at a ratio of one to one against the Consumer-Generator's energy consumption, expressed in kilowatt-hours, in subsequent months.
- b. Annual excess generation: Within sixty (60) days following the end of the ~~May~~April billing cycle each year, or within sixty (60) days after the Consumer-Generator terminates service, the Association shall provide a bill credit or pay the Consumer-Generator for any excess generation accrued at the Association's average avoided cost of power as calculated by the Association for the previous calendar year.
- c. Payment for costs associated with installation of net-metering equipment shall be made prior to installation. All other amounts owed by Consumer-Generator shall be billed and paid as otherwise required by these Regulations.

Parties submitting Interconnection Requests shall pay such interconnection processing fee as may be approved by the Board of Directors from time to time and published on the Association's website. Such parties shall pay the cost of studies, if any, deemed by the Association necessary to evaluate an Interconnection Request.

- d. The Association reserves the right to modify the manner and extent to which credit or payment is given to Consumer-Generators under these Regulations, to the full extent permitted by law from time to time.

Interconnection procedures shall ensure compliance with these Regulations and with the CPUC interconnection procedures applicable to cooperative electric associations as those rules may be adopted and amended from time to time.

SECTION 7. BILLING AND PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

7.1 Billing

- a. The Association will exercise all reasonable means to assure accurate computation of all bills for electric service. In the event errors in billing occur, the Association shall promptly refund to the Consumer or credit their account in the amount of any overcharge having occurred therefrom. Likewise, the Association shall have the right to collect from the Consumer the amount of any undercharge, irrespective of the date or duration of such billing error, subject only to the conditions set forth in section 4.2(e), under which the Consumer may make installment payments on said undercharge.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

bills, weekly bills, special bills and bills for connection and reconnection are due on presentation.

- b. Where the Association receives a charge-back, a returned check, or where a funds' transfer cannot be made for any reason including unauthorized transactions, insufficient funds, and closed accounts, it shall be deemed that payment has not been made. In such cases, the Consumer will be charged a \$20.00 insufficient funds fee and may be required to make a trip to the main or a district office of the Association to make payment in cash. Consumers may be charged convenience or processing fees by any third party providing payment processing services; these fees shall not exceed the actual transaction costs.

7.5 Disconnect Collection Charge

- a. Following written notice of intent to disconnect service, the Association may be required to will send an employee to the Consumer's premises to disconnect service. Even if payment is made at that time, the Consumer will be required to pay a \$20.00 collection charge for the call.

7.6 Reconnection ChargeFees

- a. There ~~shall be~~ a \$20.00 fee for on-site reconnection charge for reconnecting a service or a \$10.00 fee for remote reconnection after the cause for discontinuance has been rectified. ~~Providing~~Provided, however, that there is a \$65.00 fee for on-site reconnection or a \$20.00 fee for remote reconnection when that when a reconnection is required by the Consumer requires reconnection at times other than during regular working hours; ~~a \$65.00 charge for reconnecting will be made.~~
- ~~b. There shall be a \$20.00 charge for reconnecting service where discontinuance was caused by the failure of a Consumer to return a signed application by mail after being given at least ten (10) days' notice. This provision applies where, for the convenience of a Consumer, a service was transferred or connected by phone instruction.~~
- ~~c. There shall be a \$20.00 charge for reconnecting service where service had been disconnected by request of the Consumer.~~

7.7 Budget Billing Plan

- a. Subject to the Association's reasonable business requirements, residential Consumers may elect an installment billing and payment plan beginning with the next normal billing cycle taking place after the request has been processed.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

- c. Variations in voltage in excess of those large starting currents on the Consumer's facilities shall not be considered a violation of the voltage standards.
- d. If in the judgment of the Association, the Consumer's facilities ~~cause excessive voltage fluctuations due to excessive starting currents~~ operate in a manner that deviates from the power quality standards required by the Association, the Consumer will be required, at his/her own expense, to take corrective action or to be disconnected after reasonable notice.

8.4 Pole Identification

- a. Each pole or other structure used for supporting electrical conductors will be stamped with the manufacturer's brand, to indicate the year in which such structures were manufactured.

8.5 Pole Inspection

- a. Each pole, tower or other structure used for the support or attachment of electrical conductors, guys or lamps, shall be inspected by the Association with sufficient frequency to determine the necessity for replacement or repair.

8.6 Attachments to Association's Poles

- a. No posters, banners, placards, radio, or TV antennae or any other object will be attached to the poles of the Association without the Association's written consent. The Association will not install, or permit installation of, the Consumer's distribution wires or equipment on the Association's primary voltage poles; provided, however, that where metering is on primary voltage poles, the Consumer may be allowed to go underground from such meter.

8.7 Transformers, Protective Equipment and Billing Demand

- a. Necessary step-down transformers, together with necessary protective equipment, will be installed and maintained by the Association unless otherwise specified in the applicable rate schedule on file. The Association will not be required to install in excess of 1 kVA of transformer capacity for each horsepower of the Consumer's normal requirements. If the Consumer's power requirements prove to be substantially more or less than set forth in the application for service, the Association may make such reduction or increase in installed transformer capacity as it deems advisable and the Consumer will pay to the Association the cost of making such change.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

- b. The Association's recommendations for protection of the Consumer's equipment against low voltage, phase reversal, and single-phase operation on three-phase loads shall be obtained from the Association by the Consumer and shall govern the installation of protective equipment by the Consumer.
- c. Billing demand will be established by using the maximum average kilowatt load used by the Consumer for any period of fifteen (15) or sixty (60) consecutive minutes depending upon the applicable rate, during the month for which the bill is rendered as indicated or recorded by a demand meter.

8.8 Power Factor

- a. The Association will measure the Consumer's total power factor to consist of the average total power factor over each billing cycle. Where the average power factor of the Consumer's service connection is less than 95% power factor, a one percent surcharge per 1% below the 95% power factor limit will be charged to the Consumer's total monthly bill. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is equal to or above ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the Consumer's maximum demand. If at the time of the Consumer's maximum demand, the Consumer's power factor is less than ninety-five (95) percent, the demand for billing purposes shall be the measured demand times ninety-five (95) percent divided by the Consumer's power factor. The Association reserves the right to discontinue service to any Consumer whose power factor, in the sole judgment of the Association, adversely affects the Association's system.

8.9 Liability

- a. All lines, wires, apparatus, instruments, meters, transformers and materials supplied by the Association at its expense or under its Regulations will be and remain the property of the Association. The Association's property shall not be worked upon or interfered with by the Consumer or other unauthorized Persons.
- b. The Consumer shall be responsible for any damage to or loss of the Association's property located on the Consumer's premises, caused by or arising out of the acts, omissions, or negligence of Consumers, or the misuse or unauthorized use of the Association's property by Consumers. The cost of making good such loss and/or repairing such damage shall be paid by the Consumer. The Consumer shall be held responsible for injury to the Association's employees if caused by Consumer's acts, omissions, or negligence.
- c. The Consumer shall be responsible for any injury to Persons or damage to property occasioned or caused by the acts, omissions or negligence of the Consumer or any of



INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

RATES AND REGULATIONS

PART V: EXTENSION REGULATIONS

Adopted by the Board of Directors

Effective

Rate and Regulation Resolution BR

Timothy L. White, President

Date

Intermountain Rural Electric Association Board of Directors

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

EXTENSION REGULATIONS

SECTION 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following Extension Regulations set forth the terms and conditions under which the Association extends service to Consumers in the Association's service territory.

Existing contracts for service that comply with previously approved Regulations and the Membership Application and Electrical Service Agreement shall remain in effect and bound by the terms and conditions at the time service was initiated.

SECTION 2. NEW SERVICE LINE EXTENSION

- a. When one or more applicants request electric service at premises not connected to the Association's Distribution System or request an increase in service to premises already connected, where such increase necessitates additional investment, the Association, after consideration of the applicant's electric requirements, will designate the service requested as being Permanent, Indeterminate, or Temporary in accordance with the definitions hereinafter set forth.
- b. When the distribution line necessary to supply the individual applicant requires the construction of more than a secondary service connection, although for applicant's sole use, such construction shall be included as part of the Association's general Distribution System.
- c. Service extensions and modifications shall be designed by the Association's Engineering Department or its contractors. Each applicant will pay the design fee specified in the Rates to the Association to obtain the engineering to extend or modify electric service. Design fees are non-refundable unless the applicant's request is canceled prior to any cost being accrued.
- d. Contracts for service shall be based upon the cost of constructing and installing the line extension and facilities necessary to adequately supply the service requested by the applicant. Said investment shall include all costs necessary for the extension, such as primary and secondary distribution facilities, substation and transmission facilities, if appropriate, rights-of-way, tree trimming, special housing, special supports, lightning arresters and other protective equipment, meters, transformers, and service loops.
- e. Said investment shall be the cost of the particular extension, and it shall not include, or be determined with, reference to provision for additional capacity, size, or strength in excess of that actually necessary to meet the requirements of the applicant or applicants to be then served and the requirements of either the National Electrical Safety Code or construction standards established by the Rural Electrification Administration.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

EXTENSION REGULATIONS

- b. In situations where the extension is of such length or requires special equipment, and the prospective applicant's revenue temporarily or permanently to be derived therefrom is so limited as to make it doubtful whether necessary fixed costs on the investment would be earned, the Association reserves the right to require the applicant or applicants to pay the Association, in advance, all construction costs and, in addition, contract to pay the Association annually an amount to cover the such fixed costs.

SECTION 4. JOINT USE FACILITIES

- a. The joint use of the Association's overhead facilities ~~distribution poles~~ with other utilities ~~for telephone and cable TV or communication services providers with the Association's overhead electric facilities~~ will ~~only~~ be permitted only pursuant to and according to the terms and conditions of ~~when~~ a separate joint use or attachment agreement ~~is established~~ between the Association and a specific utility ~~or~~ for communication ~~services~~ facilities owner.
- b. The joint use of a common trench for liquid fuel lines such as, but not limited to, liquefied petroleum gas or natural gas, or any other wet utilities, with any of the Association's underground electric facilities is prohibited.

SECTION 5. EXTENSION ORIGIN AND ROUTE

- a. Location of the extension origin, and the route to be followed in the construction of an extension, shall be determined by the Association's Engineering Department after due consideration of the engineering, land use and regulatory issues involved, with the objective of providing the best service possible. The origin need not necessarily be at the point on the existing Distribution System most proximate to the applicant's premises, nor the route selected the shortest distance between origin and delivery point.

SECTION 6. SERVICE CLASSIFICATION AND EXTENSIONS

6.1 Classification

In considering extension of facilities, the Association will classify the service to be furnished as Permanent, Indeterminate, or Temporary.

- a. Permanent includes electric line extensions for secondary or primary service to applicant(s) where the use of service is to be Permanent and where a continuous return to the utility of sufficient revenue to support the necessary investment is assured.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

EXTENSION REGULATIONS

- b. Indeterminate includes electric line extensions for secondary or primary service to applicant(s) not covered by a, above, or c, below, when the use of service cannot be reasonably assured as to its amount and permanency.
- c. Temporary includes service to applicant(s) where the expected period of usage is eighteen (18) months or less, except in special cases where the period of usage may be longer than eighteen (18) months, such as at large construction projects.

6.2 Extension to Permanent Service

- a. The Association will extend service to an applicant classified as Permanent according to the following terms and conditions:
 - 1. The applicant shall initiate a contract authorization and pay the applicable design fee prior to the Association's engineer providing a cost estimate and electrical design to the applicant.
 - 2. The owner of the premises (or owner's agent) must ~~enter into (1) membership application and electric service agreement and (2) sign a~~ construction contract, pay the total estimated cost, and provide any additional required documents prior to construction.
 - 3. The applicant must furnish the Association with documents to prove that he/she will build when service is made available and that he/she is the owner or owner's agent of the property. If the applicant cannot provide proof that he/she will build when service is made available, then service shall be classified as Indeterminate.
 - 4. The applicant shall pay the cost of construction of facilities needed to extend service, less any Construction Allowance Credit applicable to the extension. The applicant may receive a Construction Allowance Rebate if the Revenue Threshold is met or exceeded within the Open Extension Period. Construction Allowance Rebates shall not be prorated if the Revenue Threshold is not met during the Open Extension Period.
 - 5. When a prospective residential applicant requests service from an existing primary line extension eligible for Tap Fee Reimbursements, the following tap fee provisions apply to the new applicant requesting service and to the members of the original line extension.

INTERMOUNTAIN RURAL ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION

EXTENSION REGULATIONS

6.3 Extension to Indeterminate Service

- a. The Association will extend service to the applicant classified as Indeterminate according to the following terms and conditions:
 1. When a developer wishes to initiate the extension of electric service into a residential or commercial development, he/she will provide the Association with an accurate plat to the subdivision tract as approved by the city or county authority, and as recorded with the clerk and recorder of the Colorado county in which the development is situated. In addition, it will be necessary that the developer or applicant initiate a contract authorization and pay the applicable design fee prior to the Association's engineer providing a cost estimate and electrical design to the applicant.
 2. The applicant must pay in advance the estimated cost for the installation of electrical facilities prior to scheduling the job for construction. Prior to the start of construction or payment of the estimated cost by the applicant, the Association may, at its sole option, classify a portion or all of the electric service to be supplied as Permanent service
 3. Indeterminate services shall pay all construction costs in advance. The applicant may receive a Construction Allowance Rebate if the Revenue Threshold is met or exceeded within the Open Extension Period. Construction Allowance Rebates shall not be prorated if the Revenue Threshold is not met during the Open Extension Period.
- b. A Contribution-in-Aid of Construction, not subject to refund, may also be collected when unusual facilities such as for special underground facilities or for ornamental overhead facilities are supplied at the applicant's request.

6.4 Extension to Temporary Service

- a. The Association will extend its facilities to provide service to applicants classified as Temporary under the following terms and conditions:
 1. The applicant must enter into a Contract with the Association at the applicable rate schedule.
 2. The term of the contract shall be for the anticipated period of time that service will be required.